
 

UNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

March 5, 2018  *  6:00 PM  *  UNITY TOWN OFFICE 
 

AGENDA 
 
6:00    Introductions & agenda review (Mary) 
 
6:05    Review and approve Feb 5th meeting minutes  

• Acknowledge Jim Buckle resignation 
 
6:10 Assignment reports from last meeting and next steps 

• Mary – reach out to Envirem 
• Tony – reach out to owner with vacant buildings 
• Larry – reach out to State of Maine Chamber 
• Gail – clean up annual report & UniTel outreach 
• Alicyn – floor sheet 
• Jenny – reach out to College IT Director about briefing EDC 
• Mary Ann – brief Budget Committee 

 
6:30 Committee Updates 

• RLF Committee (Kari/Mike) 
o Kari new public point of contact 
o Selectmen report on loan administration (Penny) 

• Marketing Committee (Jenny) 
 
6:40 Budget Committee Update (Mary Ann) 
 
6:45   Review articles that Kari/Penny have prepared for TM and make EDC member  
 assignments to speak at TM 
 
7:05 UniTel and broadband guests (Gail & Jenny) 
 
7:20 Ordinance clarity re RLF & Subcommittees (Mary Ann) 
 
7:45 Announcements and other business 
 
7:55    Recap and next steps 
 
8:00 Adjourn 	



	
Unity	EDC	Meeting	Minutes	 February	5,	2018 Page 1 of 3	

Unity Economic Development Committee 

February 5, 2018 Minutes (DRAFT) 

Note: Decisions and commitments made in bold italic. 
 

Present:	 Mary	L,	Mary	Ann	H,	Najean	S,	Jim	B,	Jon	W,	Ellen	B,	Lucia	P,	Larry	K,	Jenny	d,	 	
	 	 Alicyn	S,	Tony	A,	Kari	H,	Gail	C	

Excused:		 Mike	G	

Guests:			 Zoey	Bond,	Dan	McCormick,	Penny	S,	Andy	Reid	(budget	committee)	

ITEM	1:	Approval	of	Minutes	

Moved	to	accept	as	presented	(Mary	Ann);	Seconded	(Lucia).	Approved	unanimously.			

ITEM	2:	Committee	Updates	

RLF	Committee:	The	first	loan	has	been	preliminarily	approved,	pending	setting	terms.		

Marketing,	Makers	Space,	and	Trails:	No	updates.		
	
ITEM	3:	Lodging	Committee	Update	

Selectmen	reviewed	a	draft	RFP	last	month	and	recommended	that	the	item	go	before	the	town	
meeting	for	funding	approval	of	the	feasibility	study,	due	to	the	size	of	the	appropriation,	rather	than	
being	assigned	to	previously-appropriated	funds.		

ITEM	4:	Budget	Committee	&	EDC	

What	are	duties	of,	and	relationship	between,	EDC	and	Budget	Committee,	and	should	they	be	in	better	
communication?	Reading	ordinances,	there	is	overlap	on	the	work	both	committees	are	doing,	and	
some	level	of	communication	could	save	work.	

Andy	stated	that	the	Budget	Committee	can	meet	up	to	4	times	a	year,	but	typically	only	has	enough	
business	to	justify	one	or	two	meetings.	Mary	stated	that	it	would	make	sense	for	EDC	and	Budget	
Committee	to	jointly	participate	in	conversations	about	TIF	appropriations	prior	to	Town	Meeting.	Andy	
says	the	committee	would	be	more	than	happy	to	do	so.	No	ordinance	change	is	required	for	the	two	
groups	to	meet;	but	intentional	joint	discussion	would	lead	to	more	informed	people	at	Town	Meeting,	
and	make	sure	everyone	is	aware	of	the	state	mandated	restrictions	on	TIF	funding.	Andy	stated	the	
Budget	Committee	would	appreciate	a	short	TIF	primer	because	there	was	confusion	about	the	EDC	
recommendation	about	spending	down	old	appropriations	before	requesting	new,	and	the	Budget	Cmte	
did	not	feel	they	got	a	good	explanation	of	what	has	been	approved	vs	future.	

ACTION	ITEM:	Members	of	EDC	will	attend	next	Budget	Committee	meeting	Feb	7th	@	6:30pm	@	UCC	
to	provide	a	TIF	overview,	and	provide	insight	into	recommended	appropriations,	both	old	and	new.	
Mary	Ann	committed	to	preparing	a	presentation	for	the	Budget	Committee.	
	
ITEM	5:	TIF	Budget	Proposal	

Discussion	about	whether	to	keep	the	new	TIF	budget	items	grouped	together	as	a	slate	or	break	them	
up	for	discussion	at	Town	Meeting.	Jim	observed	that	at	last	week’s	Budget	Committee	meeting,	some	
members	were	reluctant	to	vote	on	the	TIF	budget	as	a	slate,	and	rather	wanted	to	vote	on	individual	
items.		



	
Unity	EDC	Meeting	Minutes	 February	5,	2018 Page 2 of 3	

	
Tony	stated	that	he	preferred	at	least	the	lodging	feasibility	to	be	stand-alone.		
	
Lucia	and	Gail	suggested	combining	the	streetscape	appropriation	with	the	“Traffic	calming”	portion	of	
the	“Traffic	calming,	KVCOG	dues,	legal,	general	administration”	appropriation.	However,	the	
Streetscape	item	is	for	a	plan	and	some	want	to	keep	the	lighting	plan	separate	because	it	may	be	more	
controversial,	and	we	would	need	to	implement	changes	in	steps.		
	
Penny	referred	to	a	conversation	some	members	of	the	marketing	committee	had	with	a	Central	Maine	
Power	(CMP)	representative	a	few	weeks	ago.	Penny	stated	that	lighting	replacement	is	very	costly.	
Jenny	and	Mary	asked	whether	the	selectmen	still	think	a	lighting	feasibility	study	is	needed.	Discussion	
ensued	about	the	options	for	lighting.	Gail	noted	that	a	plan	will	help	the	town	reach	a	future	vision.	
Alicyn	asked	Penny	what	else	could	be	done	with	the	$10,000.	Penny	would	support	if	we	removed	the	
word	“plan.”	Mary	stated	she	did	not	want	to	put	something	on	the	docket	that	the	Selectmen	do	not	
agree	with;	Jim	disagreed,	and	recommended	we	let	the	people	decide.	Gail	stated	a	concern	that	if	the	
Selectmen	do	not	like	the	concept,	even	if	approved,	when	it	comes	to	implementation,	they	will	not	
approve	the	actual	spending.		
	
In	the	end,	the	group	decided	to	leave	the	$10,000	for	a	plan.	
	
Decision:	The	TIF	budget	for	new	appropriations	will	be	presented	to	the	Town	Meeting	as	8	individual	
articles	–	the	7	that	were	decided	at	the	last	meeting,	plus	one	article	for	lodging	feasibility	study	from	
NEW	appropriation	(taking	this	project	out	of	old),	which	leaves	$15,000	in	available	among	
previously	appropriated	funds.	
	
ITEM	6:	Selectmen	and	EDC	–	What’s	Next?	

Mary	observed	that	Selectmen	vision	of	roles	contrasts	with	EDC	vision	of	roles.		We	all	need	to	be	more	
on	the	same	page	to	prevent	spinning	wheels.	What	if	the	selectmen	do	not	approve	of	anything	in	the	
TIF	budget?	Gail	stated	that	if	the	town	people	do	approve,	the	Selectmen	must	and	will	honor	that	will.		

Gail	asked	the	Selectmen	to	state	what	they	would	like	to	see	in	terms	of	economic	development	in	the	
town	of	Unity?			
	
Penny	stated	that	there	is	still	low	hanging	fruit.	Tony	stated	that	he	has	not	seen	the	town	benefit	from	
the	TIF	funding	over	the	past	5-10	years,	aside	from	the	UBX	map.	He	wants	to	see	impacts	sooner	than	
5-10	years	down	the	road.	He	believes	plans	and	studies	do	not	pay	off	soon	enough.	Jim	stated	that	
business	develops	more	with	planning,	and	that	we	have	to	make	multiple-year	plans	and	steps.	Jim	
asked	what	projects	can	be	done	immediately?	Penny	responded	that	wayfinding	signs	is	a	low	hanging	
fruit.		
	
Tony	stated	that	we	could	reach	out	to	owners	of	establishments	that	are	vacant/closed	and	ask	what	
they	need.	Gail	reminded	the	group	that	a	facades	grant	could	help,	but	only	if	there	is	a	viable	business	
–	the	entrepreneur	has	to	have	a	solid	business	plan.	A	facades	grant	without	the	business	plan	is	
Fairfield.	Gail	reminded	the	group	that	businesses	that	do	exist	were	surveyed	and	stated	they	wanted	
more	marketing	and	lodging;	this	has	been	repeated	in	several	reports.	Mary	and	Mary	Ann	stated	that	
without	a	website,	there	is	little	we	can	do	to	“list”	or	link	the	town	on	other	sites.	Jon	noted	that	the	
EDC	brings	up	professional	services	and	that’s	when	Selectmen	disagree.		
	
Larry	recalled	that	the	Grow	Smart	process	was	perhaps	grandiose;	and	suggested	that	we	might	want	
to	connect	with	the	state	chamber	of	commerce	so	we	know	what	new	businesses	might	be	interested	



	
Unity	EDC	Meeting	Minutes	 February	5,	2018 Page 3 of 3	

in	coming	and	get	Unity	on	their	radar.	Gail	suggested	Maine	&	Co	instead,	and	that	we	might	want	to	
have	a	property	inventory.	Lucia	asked	how	Envirem	and	the	dollar	store	got	located	here?	Andy	asked	
whether	Envirem	might	be	able	to	help	attract	other	businesses?	Mary	stated	Envirem	seems	to	want	to	
strengthen	their	own	position,	and	did	mention	that	they	feel	the	lack	of	lodging	in	the	area.	
	
Tony	stated	he	would	sign	off	on	anything	that	would	increase	tax	base	or	jobs	for	the	town.	There	was	
general	and	shared	frustration	about	the	lack	of	common	ground	between	the	Selectmen	and	the	EDC.	
Jim	Buckle	left	the	meeting	in	frustration.		
	
Alicyn	stated	that	the	Town	Meeting	will	be	a	time	to	take	the	pulse	of	what	the	general	public	wants,	
and	that	by	considering	each	item	we	will	know	how	the	public	feels	on	each	one.	Several	members	
agreed	with	this	optimistic	sentiment.	Alicyn	volunteered	to	create	“floor	sheets”	for	the	meeting	
explaining	the	items	and	how	TIF	funds	are	not	affecting	general	funds	or	tax	rates.		
	
ACTION	ITEMS:	

1. Larry	will	call	the	Maine	State	Chamber	of	Commerce	to	ask	what	aid	they	might	offer	and	
what	the	town	can	do	to	be	ready	for	business.		

2. Tony	will	call	building	owner(s)	who	have	empty	lots	to	ask	what	might	be	needed	to	keep	
business	here.	Mary	and	Gail	willing	to	assist.		

3. Alicyn	will	create	sheets	for	each	TIF	budget	article,	with	help	from	Mary	Ann	and	marketing	
committee.	

	
ITEM	7:	Annual	Report	

Penny	advised	that	Kari	in	the	Town	Office	asks	that	the	annual	report	is	limited	to	1-2	pages	for	
inclusion	in	the	larger	annual	town	report.	Deadline	is	early	March.		
	
ACTION	ITEMS:	Mary	Ann	and	Gail	will	revise	the	draft	annual	report	for	further	review	at	the	next	
EDC	meeting.	
	
ITEM	8:	Broadband	

Gail	stated	that	she	has	heard	complaints	about	Internet	service	in	the	Town.	There	is	a	planning	grant	
available	for	connectivity.	UniTel	has	received	funding	for	improved	service	and	a	web	ad	for	“fiber	to	
the	home,”	yet	people	still	have	lousy	web	service.	Gail	suggested	talking	to	someone	who	knows	more	
about	broadband.	TIF	funding	can	be	used	for	broadband,	but	the	$	might	not	go	very	far.		
	
Can	the	EDC	start	looking	into	this?	There	was	general	support.	Gail	suggested	inviting	the	broadband	
arm	of	UniTel	to	a	future	meeting,	and	in	the	meantime	gather	input	from	customers	about	their	
satisfaction	with	the	speed.	Larry	and	Mary	caution	against	criminalizing	the	company,	but	support	
finding	out	what	UniTel’s	plans	are	for	fiber	to	home	and	high	speed	internet.		
	
ACTION	ITEMS:		

1. Gail	will	invite	UniTel	to	next	meeting	to	provide	an	update	
2. Jenny	will	inquire	whether	Unity	College’s	information	officer	might	be	willing	to	present	to	

the	committee	
	
Meeting	Adjourned	at	8:05pm.		

	
Next	meeting	is	March	5.		
	



ECONOMIC	DEVELOPMENT	COMMITTEE	

2017	ANNUAL	REPORT		

The	Unity	Economic	Development	Committee	(EDC)	was	formed	in	January	2016	by	ordinance	to	guide	the	Town’s	
economic	development	policies,	programs	and	investments.	The	EDC	has	been	extremely	active,	holding	regular	
Committee	meetings	as	well	dozens	of	working	group	meetings	that	included	non-member	residents.	All	EDC	
information	is	posted	on	the	town	web	site.	We	are	pleased	to	present	a	summary	of	the	EDC’s	2017	activities.	

I.		Unity	as	a	Destination	Initiative	
We	held	two	well-attended	community	conversations	in	February	and	March	to	explore	whether	and	how	
townspeople	might	like	to	see	Unity	become	a	desirable	destination	for	visitors	in	a	manner	that	would	increase	
both	economic	vibrancy	and	our	residential	quality	of	life.	The	following	priority	strategies	were	strongly	
endorsed:	

A. Developing	an	attractive	Unity	brand	and	marketing	strategy	
Status:	Marketing	Committee	established;	request	to	hire	professional	to	advise	on	branding	and	
marketing	strategy	turned	down	by	Selectmen;	conducted	follow-up	interviews	with	local	business	
owners	to	gather	input;	branding	and	marketing	strategy	remains	incomplete;	still	exploring	web	site	
options;	recommending	streetscape/lighting	plan	

B. Addressing	lodging	needs	as	identified	in	the	2016	business	survey	
Status:	Lodging	concept	explored	not	feasible;	recommending	professional	market	analysis	for	all	possible	
lodging	products,	including	campgrounds	

C. Creating	a	shared	makers’	space	to	support	and	mentor	artisans	
	 Status:	Group	organized,	site	identified,	exploring	insurance	options	

D. Enhancing	our	lake	and	trail	offerings	
Status:		A	kiosk,	map,	parking	area	and	wayfinding	signage	have	been	identified	as	short-term	objectives.	
The	Horse	Ring	site	at	the	edge	of	Sandy	Stream	is	being	considered	for	a	multi-use	parking	area	and	
trailhead	with	river	access.		

E. Exploring	a	brew	pub.	
Status:	Inactive;	suitable	space	not	found	by	interested	party	

	

2.	Grants	and	Revolving	Loan	Fund	Programs	
Work	was	completed	to	launch	three	avenues	for	residents	to	apply	for	TIF	funds:		

1. Marketing	Grant	Program	—	to	support	marketing	activities	that	promote	Unity	as	a	place	to	visit,	shop,	
reside	and	start	a	business	(apply	90	days	before	activity).		

2. Community	Grant	Program	—	to	support	economic	development	activities	other	than	marketing	that	are	
allowed	under	Unity’s	TIF	Development	Program	(apply	90	days	before	activity).	

3. Revolving	Loan	Fund	—	3-5%	loans	of	$2,500-$15,000	available	for	qualifying	Unity	businesses	(detailed	
business	plan	and	application	required;	deadlines	April	1,	October	1,	January	

	
3.	Administrative	Progress	
The	EDC	bylaws	were	strengthened	to	address	potential	conflicts	of	interest.	The	annual	TIF	budget	development	
process	was	initiated	and	executed.	The	EDC	and	Budget	Committee	agreed	to	begin	meeting	together	at	least	
once	a	year	in	the	fall	to	better	coordinate	town	financial	planning.	

Respectfully	submitted,	 	 	 	
Unity	Economic	Development	Committee	
	
Tony	Avila	 	
Ellen	Batchelder	
Gail	Chase	
Jennifer	deHart	
Mike	Gold	

	

Mary	Ann	Hayes	
Kari	Hulva	
Larry	King	
Mary	Leaming	

	

Lucia	Picard	
Najean	Shedyak	
Alicyn	Smart	
Jon	Wadick	



Info	for	EDC	Articles	
	

Fire	Truck	Fund	($10,000)	
• Since	the	inception	of	TIF,	an	annual	appropriation	has	been	made	to	

the	Fire	Truck	Fund	
	
Destination	Web	Site	&	Related	Marketing	($5,000)	

• Ranked	2nd	most	important	priority	by	community	members	at	the	2017	
Unity	as	a	Destination	forum	

• Out	of	32	businesses	surveyed	in	2017,	the	most	frequent	request	was	a	
tourist	appealing	web	presence	

• Draw	visitors	to	Unity	to	enjoy	our	attractions	and	patronize	our	
businesses	

		
Streetscape,	Lighting	&	Signage	Plan	($10,000)	

• Acquire	professional	services	to	lay	out	a	multi-year	path	toward	
improving	street	lighting	infrastructure	with	lower	life	cycle	energy	costs	

• Increase	the	appeal	of	the	town	to	attract	visitors,	residents,	and	
shoppers	while	improving		safety	for	all		

		
Wayfinder	Signs	Including	Business	Directional	Sign	Cost	Share	Program	($3,000)	

• Share	the	cost	of	purchasing	DOT-approved	directional	signs	for	points	
of	interest	and	businesses	

		
Recreational	Trails	($10,000)	

• Make	improvements	to	Unity’s	trail	system	to	draw	visitors	and	increase	
spending		

		
Traffic	Calming,	KVCOG	dues,	Legal	and	General	Administration	($6,000)	

• Cover	administrative	costs,	legal	fees	and	KVCOG	(Kennebec	Valley	
Council	of	Governments)	dues	as	they	relate	to	economic	development	

• Rebuild	soil	beds,	plant	and	maintain	downtown	neck-downs		
		

Lodging	Feasibility	Study	($15,000)	
• Acquire	market	analysis	to	identify	multiple	lodging	products	that	would	

be	most	successful	in	and	compatible	with	our	community	
• Ranked	1st	most	important	priority	by	community	members	at	the	2017	

Unity	as	a	Destination	forum	as	an	economic	driver	and	to	incentivize	
more	people	to	come	and	stay		

• Market	the	findings	to	attract	and	inform	one	or	more	lodging	
entrepreneurs	


	EDC Agenda 3-5-18
	EDC Minutes February 5 2018
	EDC Annual Report 2018 3-3
	Info for Articles (MA-jd edits)-CLEAN.pdf



